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| INTRODUCTORY
A HISTORICAL SKETCH

‘One of the high points in Unglish and American History is the founding
of the first pefmanent English Settlement in America at Jamestown, Virginia, in
1607. | | |

James I was King of England, héving succeeded Queen mlizabeth in 1603.

The historic emphasis in the first successful planting of this particu-
lar colony by the English, lies in the fact that it was the beginninzg - - the
"opening wedge," so to express it, of the English Colonial Expansioh in the lew
World, and brought to the wilds of North America the customs, habits of thought,
and the developing ideals of the Anglo-Saxon race. |

At this period, the wars between England and Scotland had cecased. An
union between the two countries had been formed. The crown of S5cotland had been
united to that of England, and James Stuart, who was James VI of Scotland, cawe
.io.the.English throne as James I of England under the articles of this union.

The settlers in Virginia knew about these matters. They also knew that
‘the trade relations, abroad and at home, would étrengthen both countries in sea
power, freight carrylng -- naval exﬁansion -- greater equipment, worships, etec.;
because of this union of the two countries, un&er_the English Crown, although
Scotland still retained her parliament. Wales was already a loyal supporter of
the English Monarchy, but, for centuries the Welsh Chieftains had fousht English
kiﬁgé. At last a érandson of Owen Tudor, a Welch knight, came to the inglish
throne as Henry VII, whose name was lenry Tudor. This ﬁas in. 1485, From that
time the Welsh were loyal to the English Crown. :

Thus, it came about, that the three countries were under the Samé -at-
ional gavernment. Taken together, as a body of land, they-férmcd the island of
Great Britain. . |
Ireland known as the "Emerald Isle", and a large island too, lay just
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across the Irish Sea and its arms, to the west of Great Britain. This body of"
water, with its arms, bays, inletS‘ahd chanhels, washe& the shores of Creat
Britain, and made it easy for the Irish and Scotch, especially, to form internal
trade relations. In this way marriages often occurred between the two peopleqa

The decendants of these marriages often were known as "Scotch-Irish”, whercsd}



ever they might choose to live. Both the Scotch and the Irish were of a strong
and vigorous section or division of the Celtic-Caucasian pari of the human vace.
So. were the Welsh. Ireland was also under the gavernnent of ‘ireat 3Britain.

The Amerlcan of today, who'wishes to trace his ancestral line back to
the iand of his forefathers, must have little appreciation of the conditiions
under, which his ancestors lived, if he dose not seek to learn something of the
"tendencies of the times" in which they "moved and had their being."

Great national and religious movements combined, were astir in the Edit-
ish Isles and Ireland, while the seitlers in Virginia were clearing forests,
building homes for shelter, erecting forts of defense against the Indians, rals-
ing corn and wheat for food, and tobacco for export, and gradually becoming a
prosperous English, or Anglo-American colony. The real meaning of the contest in
both its political and religious aspects, was the further rights of the people,
versus the powers of the crown, mixed up with the oppoultlon to the creed of the
Estabilished Church of England. Everyone was forced by law to worship in those
churches or be- fined or imprisoned; All this led to civil war in the next reign.
James I was one of those rulers who called himself (as head) a king by divine
right, as did the rest of the Stuarts who followed him on the English throme. lie
¢eclared that "It 1s presumption anxd the high contempt in a uubJect to dispute
what a king can do; or say a king cannot do this or that”. The historian says
those are his own words. But the Commons of the [English Farliament differec with
their Stuart kings in their views concerning the nature of government, parti-
cularly the nature of the English government. In this difference of views lay
hidden the Civil War of the next reign, and all that grew out of it, —-The
Commonwealth, the Protectorate, and the Revolution of 1688. When .James I came
to the English throne, it had been nearly four hundred years since King John,
(one of the Plantagenet Rulers of England), had been forced to sign the Creat
‘Charter, held saered as the safeguard of English iiberties and in which the
rights and privileges of the peopleawere cleafly defined and guaranteed.

'The historian says; "Considering the far reaching. consequences that
resulted from the granting of this Charter -- the securing of Constitutional
Liberty as an inheritance of the English speaking race;in ali paris of the
world -~ it must always be cpnsidered'the most important concession ever'wrung
from a tyrannical sovereign." |

This charter was secured by an uprising and an open revolt of the barons
of the realm. The tyrant was forced to bow to the storm he had raised. He met
his barons at Runnymede, a meadow on the Thames, near Windsor, and there affixed
his seal to the instrument which had been prepared to received it. This event
took place in. 1215 '

Afterward, King John disrega:ded various articles of the Great Charter, .

bY arfogkting to himselF pretoqatives wlich Were gochidded |y the Charier
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and so did many of his successors; but Lhe people alway: clung to 1L an the ware
rant and safeguard of thelr llberties. Again and arain they rorceé tyrannienl kiners
to renew and confirm its provisions, and swear solemnly to obzerve a1l its articlea

At the death of King John his son and successor came to the “nglish throne
as Henry I11I.

Henry III proved to be a worse tyrant than his father. A chronicler of the
times says:" The English were oppressed like as the people of Israel under tharoah."
Henry violated the provisions of thé Charter to such an extent that it became'open
war between him and his people. A big battle was fought betwecen the royal forces and
the forces of the people, known as the battle of Lewes; the royal forces were de-.
feated and King lenry was taken prisoner. -

Earl Simon de Montfort, the leader of the people against the king, now
issued, in the King's name, writs of summons to the barons, (except t¢ the king's _
adherents), the bishops, and the abbots to meet in Parliament; at the same time he
sent similar writs tc the sheriffs cf the different shires directing them “to re-
turn two knights for the body of theilr county, with two citizens or Surghers for
every clty and borough contained in it.” This was the first time that plain, un-
titled citizens, or burghers had been called to take their places with the barons,
bishops and knights in the great council of the nat10n° to join in deliberations
on the affairs of the realm. .

From this gathering may be dated the birth of the House of Commons. That
event took place in 1265. The formation of the House of Commoné broucht out the
principle of representation through the ballots of the peoplé in practical form.

It was, ot led to, a great change in the form of the knglish national assembly.
The House of Commons finally grew into the controlling branqh of the Eﬁglish Far-
liament. | | ' |

Down the chainvof the centuries,.ever and anon, the English people
stormed the citadels of tyranny, and compelled arrogant kings to come back to the
"law and the testimony” of constitutional liberty, and their rights in voting by
ballots for their representatives in the House of Commdns.~ '

James I knew the history of these Bnglish people, and of his own Scot-
land, and every important event which had occurved in the making of this linm-
lish cénstitutional monarchy. He knew the spirit of the Enﬁliéh nation, but for
all that he was an Obstructor, blind to the pest welfare of the most progressive
nation on the glooe at that period.of time. He was a.decided failure in his kingly
capacity. He drew no lessons of wisdom from the records of the past as the head of
the National Government of England.

- All the time during his reign he was quarre'llng with the House of Con-
mons, imposing his tyrannical laws by proclamation and otherwise upon the people.
History records that by his orders through corrupt judges who would do his bidding

thét some of the members of court who would not were cast lnto prison. lle would



his-demands. The rcprasentatlves of the pcoplé‘in thee Honee of Sommon:s: Yool o
written protes, called "The Great Frotestation.” This proleast stands out in bold.
characters as to the civil and political and governmental statuz of the ﬂnhlish
people. It was another link in the chaln of constutional freedom, in the develop-
ment of yhr English nation. Like a cable of steel, it reached back and back to the
Great Charter, to the Battle of Lewes; to the formation of that liouse of ommons
with this king was over-riding. James I was standing on the brink of a volcano
when he died in 1625. |

All this while the Virginia Colony had many troubles from different
causes. One of them was sickness among the settlers, brought on by eﬁposure in
that land of swamps and jungles on the banks of the James. At one period deaths
from this cause alone cut down the population to half, at least, of their number.
Malaria poisoned the blood of the stoutest men and fevers seized them with-deadly
grip. Another great trouble arose. The Indians committed a ierrible massacre upon
the settlements outlying up and down the river. Three hundred men, women and
children were killed and many homes burned. Aut, somehow the Indians were driven:
further away into the wilderness. The colony fe;overed and settlers from ihe Lng-
lish domions over the sea flocked to Virginia; English, Scotch, Scotch-Irish,
Irish and Welsh. People of other nationalities came also in gruops. And sometimes
an individual came just to look in. England was a cosmopolote nation among the
nations even then. Law and order had slowly but surely developed into her systen
bf government; in spite.of wars, priviledged aristocracy, cppression of kings and
titled sympathisers who supported the rulers; in spite of every obstruction,
JamesIl could not break a single link in the chain of constitutional freedoms gua-
ranteed to her people. He could and did trample upon the rights of the people, .
but it only secured as a result in the end of the Stuart dynasty, a freer gov-
ernment for the péople. - |

The colonists in Virginia had met and formed the first legislative re-
presentative'government in America, some yea:s‘brior to the deatn of King James.
It consisted of the governor, council and deputies or burgesses, aé fhey vere
'called, chosen from the various "platations" or burroughs. Its laws had to be
ratified by the proprietary company (The London Co.)_in;Englénd; but, in tum,
the orders from Londen were not binding unless ratified by the Colonial Asnzemb-
1ly. This event took place July 30, 1619.
' These privileges were afterward embodies in a written constitution, the -
first of the kind in America. A measure of freedom was thus granted the young
colony. That accurred in 1621 and Jamestown became a nursery of liberty.

James I feared the democratic princilpes upheld in the House of Com-
mons at home and their spread to the wild woods of Virginia. A goodly number
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of London Company were his political opponents and he fearerd the iInllucuce of
certain members of that company upon the colony. In 1624, Ling James took over
the Company's charter, but before the legal provisions could be completed, his
death the following year, delayeh matters.

Charles I, the son of King James, succeeded his father to the throne of
England. In the stir of the times, the legal aspect of the charter was not put
into practical action for sometime. In the interim, Sir George Yeardly, of the
London Co.,'took charge of matters in 1626 and served as governor of the colony
until his death in the latter partvof November 1627. Then Virginia became in actual

fact .and functioning a royal colony, and so remained until the American Revolution.

END OF THE INTRODUCTION



THL COMING OF THL BISUHOP FAMILY TO JAFBOTGY, VITCGINIA -

While Sir George Yearley was acting goveincr of the colony of Yirginia,
after the accession of Charlesl to-the throne of England, there was o gencral in-
flux of imigration into the colony during both of the years of 1626 and 1627 in
which he served. .
| | One day during this period, in accordance with family legends, taken to-
gether with historic facts in connection therewith, a Briiish imigrant ship, with
its signal flag flying at the mast head, ’churned® its way amidct the jolly greet-
ings of the water craft - freighters, trade-vessels, ships, etc.- and finally
swWwung to anchorage at the landing point in the habor.

G:bups of people gathered.to welcome the newcomerswho were awaiiing the
gZime time when orders should be given to those on board to disembark. There.was -
always some delays in cases of this kind. Luggage had to be identified, and any
other possessions of the immigrants which had been brought over in the ship.

Those were primitive times. No onean liners then; no floating palaces:; no steamers
to split the waves of the stormy Atlantic -- just sailing ships; but they were of
improved kind, above and beyond the shipping and naval advance of any other mari-
time nation on the globe. (Whatever may be said derogatory of King lienry ViJT, as
to his divorcement from Catherine of Aragon, and his marriagce to Anne Boleyn,

and his consequent fight with the Fope, he kept an eye-"for keeps" on the British
Navy.) ' :
King Henry had the vision to perceive that England's defensive and of-
fensive strength lay in her mastery of the sea. He brought to perfection the sail-
ing war ship and gave it precedence over the oared vessel, which up to his time,
had held chief place in the world's war navies.

- The British Immigrant ship carried the prestige of England's progressive
naval program; the confidence.of.its "land lubber” immigrants to America, to the
effect that their ship by any means, should go down in a great storm at cea, the
ship of aﬁy other nation would be dashed to pieces under far less stress of wind
and weather. This spirit of confidence made the iong and tedious voyages more en-
durangble, swept aside supposed perils in the minds of_the voyarers, and minimized
real dangers that might be encountered on any ocean voyage, to a calm and sane
vieépoint; but to resume:

The crown at the landing grew larger-- now and then a matron trips along
carefully leading a little girl or boy; another, followed by two or three older
children stopsAbeneath the branches of a huge oak looking dovn from an eminence’
which commands a.good view of the crowd below and the-ship with its'reefed_sail in

the habor. Who will dare *fly in the face' of histor and tradition, to cast a



doubt upon the entire probability that thosc'_matron:; and mothers are not the -7 -
veritable women whose husbands paid the stipulated guantity of yellow=leuf
Vi¥zinia tobacco for the privelege of claiming his bride? Those laughinc-cyed
youngers are native born Virginians - fruit of an economic love pact ~--a pact
that spans oceans, bridges, streams and conquers continents. No doubt that some of
those husbands had heard the story of poor old Jacob's fourteen years' servitude
and thanked their stars that they llved in the forefront of the modern times --
the tobacco age, when a man could throw a few pounds at the feet of the lady'of
his choice, and close the deal at once. |

But memories are aé play among the groups near the landing. Pictures of
olden days, scenes and their by-gone associations in the homeland, flash like a
ray of light through the mind of many an interested member of the groups gathered
at the various standpoints. Some of them are there to receive letters such as
only their homefolks can write; or packages such as loved ones only know how to
select, for as imigrant‘ship brings and carries everything in the way of mail-
if such a universal transportation system maybe so termed. Others -are on hand to
greet a relative, friend , acquaintance who is expected to land from this ship.
Otﬁers are at the landing for the sole purpose of giving a warm welcome to some
one whom they have never personally met, known to them simply thru report of
good character in the county or the city from which they themselves have migrated.
And youths have come to various groupé, curious on-lookers for the purpose of
cighting the crowd, as much as to see the lmigrants land. They are products of
English homes having come over like fledgelingé pushed from the home nest, to rise
and fall according to strength of wing. There is an observant wag among them
whose nod and wink behind a long face, sour-looking, skinny, old churchman in a
fluttering cape; created much sly amusement among the youngsters. liot far away
stands a tall, aristocratic gentleman in knee breeches and leggins; Once upon a
time he had been a butler in the country house of "mylord so-and-so" upon one of
the titled éstates in England. He owns a small but rather lucrative tobacco farm
now and is given to sipping ®*port® when obtainable or some other stimilant equally
"aristocratic" and effective. On octcasions, he is also given to descanting upon‘
the majestry of kings and their “divine right" of rulcfship over the nationn-of
- the earth. But his most emphatic pointé are his references to tne "lower oniers”,
the sum and substance of all of which is English Toryism uphcld by .James T and
his supporters - followed NOW by his son Charles I, the present king.Tell it not in
Oath, but the Huscle and Brawn Democracy of the settlement have labelled him "Gur.
Cockadoo"; the parrot the repeats what his master tells him. But for all this the
most interesting persoqality in review upon the canvas of this hisforical dnd tra-

ditionary sketch is "Greybeard", a genuine six-footer in coonshin cap, leather
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5acket énd loose leather breeches. It is the connectinss 1ink that unite= 1607 to
the present period or epoch in the local annals of the colony. |

"Graybeard“ came over with the first setters sent out by the irondon Co.
under Captain Newport. He was somewhat past middle age thcﬂ but fell for all he
was worth to the spreading epidemic of castin anchors on the shores of Noxrth Am-
erica. He hunted for the "yellow metal"™ with the gold seeking faddists and probably
felt as keenly as.any idlesome young lordling who calls him "my goodman™ at the tot-
al failure to find the golden treasure. - |

"Graybeard” helped  to fell the first freeS'to build the first.huts for
shelters in the settlement. He was at the "innings" in erecting forts of defense
against the Indians; and was a match in vigor, suddenness of movement, and sheer
physical strength, of the red man of the forest. In the person of ":raybeari”, the
Fates had éo-operated with nature in creating a superior type of Anglo-Saxon
manhocd, in the shawows of Privilege and Caste; where the torch of justice w23 too
often obscured, and poverty and toil and crime were hidden in the glare and splender
and pcwer of ill-gotten Health

"Graybeard” knew Captain John Smith, John Rolfe and Pocahontas and Fowatan.
He had straved with the people in "starving time" and had ouffered with zwamp fever
which had sent more that half the colonists to their graves. Born in the latter part
of .Queen Elizabeth's reign, possessing no mean axquaintance with Englizh history,
brought up in the "school of Hard Knocks", Gray from exposure rather than from aTe,
informed, self-contained, he stands foursquare to all the winds thet blow, watchlnr
the new arcivals in the habor with eyes alert beneath his sedate -coonskin cap. ile is
a type of the Anglo-Saxon backwoodméh whm kings forgot and fame scorned, until his
like conquered the wilderness and American freedom perched upon his banner.

On board the ship in the habor the roster was called, the gangplank throwm
out, and a large parfy-of‘immigrants filed to the shore, amidst a roaring cheer from
the people. Scmeone called in stentorion tones: "Welcome friends, every one of ye!”

" It was at this time, and from this ship, that an Irish mechanic by the name
of Bishop, landed with his wife and children at Jamestown; Virginia. Ilis given name
is reputed to have been William and he is known to the Union County, South Carolina
branch of his descendents as their original progenitor;. the re¢1 Pishop perconality
being a smiling mechanic from Ireland from whom this particular branch of the Bis-
hop family descended. Therefore, he is known in this chronicle as William, which,
in all probability was this Irishman's given nanme. |

~About one-hundred and three years after the landing of the Irish mechanic
By the name of Bishop with his wife and children at Jamestown, Virginia, in the
spring of.1627, a great-great- grandson was born in the colony, who was by lineal
links in the chain of his Biéhop forebears, descended from Hilliam Bishop.
. The name of this particular descendant ves Absalom Bishop. Senjor. The



himself may be found in thp folloving pagen.

Absolom Bishop, Senior was born in the colony of Virginia near the close
of the year 1730, and died in the-vicinity-of 0ld Quaker church in Union District,
South Carolina, in 1807, in the 77th year of his age.

 He was third in the ancestral line of this special Bishop family bred and
born in the colony of Virginia, prior to the American Revolution.
. His father, Thomas Bishop, was born in the Colony in 1690, and lived in

the colony to old age. He was of a mecanical turn of mind and became a co-partner

with a company of Virginians engaged in the business of establishing grist mills up-

on a number of tributary streams of the James and Potomac. It was a lucretive bus-

iness as it met the necessities of the increasing population, and the steady influx
of immingrant families into the colony. Thomas Bishop accumulated considerable means

became a land owner and developed his holdings into valuable property. ile married
the daughter of a "mill-wright" in 1729. His wife's'father'was his partﬁer in the
matter of eatablishing mills. So, this young man fell in love with his partner's
daughter and married her. Near the close of the following year, 1730, Thomas
Bishop's wife presented him a son and named him Absalom in honor of one of her
kinsmen. It has been said that each of his parents gave this first born son a

name, and therefore, he wore a double given name. Be that as it may, the Senior at-
tached, distinguished him from one of his sons named Absalonm long afterward, who,
in chronological 6rder, became Absalom Bishop, Junior. .

" Thomas Bishop, the father of Absalom Bishop, Senior, was Second in the line
of this Bishop progeniture, bred and born in the colony of Virginia, prior to the
war of the American Revolution. |

Nathaniel Bishop was the father of Thomas Bishop, and the grandfather of
Absalom Bishop, Senior, and was bred and born in the Colony of Virginia. He spent
his entire 1ife within its origimal limits. He was known among has associales as
"Nat" Bishopo o

Nathaniel Bishop was borm in 1662 or there about and was the youngest of a
small family of childern, of which he was reputed to be the only' son that lived
to manhood His father was born in Ireland, and came to Jamestown, Virginia as a
lad verging into early youth, with his father, mother, and a brother younger but
next in age to himself. Traditlion polnts to two others 1in ihis Bishop family group
from Ireland, namely; a son ard a daughter, in their childhood. ,

The head of this Bishop family was an Irish mechanic whose given name is
reputed , through the mists of the years, to have been ¥William Bishop; and, also,
that he was known among his associates in his native Ireland as "big Bill," be-

cause.of his muscular strength and tall, wiry frame.

.-
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Nathaniel Bxshop father was the elder son eof William Bichop and bore the
name of Sam Mack, the "lFack” being wholly or in part hic mother'c Gounlly nanme.,
Nathaniel Bishop was a farmer and married the daughter of a well-to-do
tobacco farmer who was one among the older settlers in the colony. 1t has becn
reputed to him that he loved the soll and made his farming operations entirely
successful in both the cultivation of tobacco and of the cereals. A number of
children were born to him and his wife beside: their son Thomeas, not all of whom
survived the malarial climate.
It is not within the scope of this chronicle to follow up the branches
of the Bishop Family Tree, other than that branch from which Absalom Bishop,
Senior, sprang as a lineal scion of the old trunk. Nathaniel Bishop, father of
Thomas Bishop, and grandfather of Absalom Bishop, Senior, was First in the direct
anceatral line of this special Bishop family bred and born in the colony of Vir-
ginia, prior to the Revoluntionary war betveen the mother country and her taglish
colonies in America.
The lapse bf time between the date of his birth and the breaking out of
the war in 1775, covered a perlod of one~hundred and thirteen years.
¥illiam Bishon, the progenitor of the special Bishop family from whom
Absalom Bishop, Sr. sprang, landed at Jamestown, Virginia, with his wife and family
from a British immigrant ship in the spring of 1627.
. Charles I, was King of England, having succeedcd his father ,James I, to
the English throne in 1625. | |
Just before his death, King James had annulled the charter of the london
Company which company had fOUnde@ the colony and made it permanent by securing
to thé settlers the civil rights of Englishmen. The annullment placed the colony's
government under royal control. King James death left the financial and transfer
matters between the company and the crown incomplete. : |
Charles I, like his father held to the policy that kings rule by “"divine
right". Curious to record, that he was too busy in London trying out his policy
of divine-right-rulership to take up the juncture which had accurred in the affairs
of far away Virginia. He seemed to.forget it. Cie |
i In this interim, the London Co. sent over one of its ablest and most ex-
perienced men in the-person of Sir George Yeardley,who a stockholder also, for the
purpose of winding up all necessary matters between the company and the crown.
Yarﬁley became acting governor of the colony during the years 1626 and 1627
until his death in the latter part of November, 1627. This statemnet is explicit
because Yeardley had bemn governor of the colony in 1616 and 1619 under the london
Company's charter. It would be easy to say that William Bishop landed with his
Tamily while Yeardley was governor without specifying the date. It was while he
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was acting governor under the reign of Charles I that the Dishep f:mllv came to
Virginia, spring of 1627.

The union of church and state was the governmental policy of all the nationsz
at that period. Religious persecution and political power was the preat combined
force that dictated religlous greeds and drove them upon the consciences.of men. Two
great powers were contending for both spiritual and interial dominion, namely:

Roman Catholicism and Protestantism. The Roman Catholic's creed is union of church
and state. England though Protestan adopted the union of church and state. Entrench~
ed Catholiciam fought to uproot the growing spreading Frotestant relicgion. Ireland
was Catholic by a large majority and Roman Catholic churches dotted her landscape.
Protestant England held Cathollc Ireland under her Rational government. James I

had indused and vigorously encouraged English and Scotch people to plant settlements
during his reign, in Ireland hoping tc convert the Catholics to Frotestantisn.

By the time William ‘had reached mature years, wnglish churches had been
built in these settlements and English clergy under the auspices of the Estabished
Frotestant. Church of’England manned the pulpits. Then Catholic Ecclesiasties
sprang to the rescue. While the majority of the Irish were Catholic, hundreds re-
Jected the creed of their established church and numbers of these also rejected the
creed of the establlshed church of England. W1lliam Bishop was one of thesze, lle
refused to align himself with either church party. "The fly in the ointment” vac the
uniocn of church and state. A deep conviction - a half hidden under current of
£hought and feeling, stronger than creeds - crent into the soul of many a man and
whispered "It's a poor relegion sustained by force."

Turmoil in various sections of Ireland broke out, riots occurred in a
village here and there. At such times public tension was high in the given terri-
tory. St. Patrick was in the saddle! There was no doubt that William Bishop,
known as "Big Bill" saw the injustice of the English invasion upon St. Patrick's
territory and would not have raised a finger to aid the invaders! iqually =o, he
could not stultify his honest convictiohs to accept the creed of the Catholic church.
He rejected both creeds. lMeantime, insurrection flached up. Tublic economnies suffer-
ed. "Big Bill" a skilled mechanic'began to feel the reduction of his means of Sup-
poff. All departments of industry and labor suffered; the outlook hecld little pro-
mise of better times. William u1“hop pulled stakes and with his family migrated
to Jamestown, Virginia; anti union of church and statec to the bone.

He found the "trade" of the colony flourishing. English merchant chips
~plied regularly between the colony and the mother couhtry. Immigrants flonked in
numbers to the different settlements springing up in'the colony. ‘ireat plantations
of tobacéo lined both banks of the James for many miles. lealthy planters employed

many men of the poorer classes to 1ill their lands. liegro slavery had already bne-
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gun' but washn 1ts ;nfancy as yet. Fen of craftmanszhip werc in demand, the call wan
inzistent. William Bilshop's knowledge and practicel ability in hin line of applied
mechanice such as the uses of the wheel and'axle. the pulley, the laver, treg fulcrm,
and inclined plane as understood by men of his vocation in those times macde him onec
of the colony's valuable assets 1n.the industrial life of its people. llis work was
in much demand and well paid. |

Meanwhile, Sam Maek Bishop, his elder son, grew in age and luzty strength
and joined the builders craft. Afterwards he was followed by his brother next in
age to himself. These two brothers together with men engaged in similar wvork,
erected dwellings for the spreading population, constructed warehousec for the
storage of tobacco, assisted in the work of making barges to float domestic pro-
ducts in community traffic to various~1andings. Also, thesé boys were among the
workmen in renewing and repairing old forts where threatened by Indian attacks.

After a few years, their father, William Bishop, owned a large tract of
land and employed‘tenants to cultivate farms upon his Holdings. His vocation brought
him in contact with various classes of men from'fhe wealthy planter to the needy
immigzant and no one, perhaps, knew the local annals of the colony better than
William Bishop. | |

' Affairs in Ireland grew worse. The people flocked to English settlements
in America from England'and the British Isles generally. They fled from religious
persecution and political tyranny in their home lands. lany a harrowing story was
told by those that fled to Virginia: of imprisonment in filthy jails, of half stary
vation of bitter bread and impure water, and so on. William's sympathies kept him
with the muscle-a-brawn democracy of the colony.

Two political parties were registered on the"bulletin board"” of fhe tlouse
of Burgesses. Sam Mack and his father cast their votes for the representatives of
their district that held their own political views. | |

William Bishop accumulated an independent competency and left his heirs
large holdings in valuable lands. His death occurred a short.time, according to
tradition, before the trial and execution of King Charles I. _

Sam Mack Biship became a pﬁrchaser in his own right as well ac by an in-
herited share of his father®s lands. He married the daughter of a middle clacc
planter. Only a small family of children were born to him by this unicn. The
youngest was his son, Nathaniel, said tépave becn ihe only son that grew to man-
hood.

Sam Mack®?s brother, just younger that he, joined a company of Virginians
made up of various industrial callins-and migrated Sout. through the wilderness.
This company of which 3am Mack's brother was a member pushed throuch great stret-

ches of forest and under growth and planted a settlement in the Albemurle section
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of North Carolina near the Virginla line. Thls was the first permencnt settloment
made in what is now the State of lorth Caroline. llistorians differ a: io the exicl
date but according to the loglc of events in connection with the tradition=z -~T
the Bishop family, that settlement was made not later than 16 .
This brother fought in the war against the Indians that followecd the
Indian Nassacre of 1644. There was dissatisfaction among the private men as lo
payment for their services. They did the fighting and the officers reaped the rec-
ward being one source of complaints. Another cause of dissatisfaction was the neg-
lect of the authorities to prepare measures in due time to mecet the cruel and .
wily Indian on his own ground. Also the massacre itself influenced some of the
men to join the immigration South. A number of workers also went with them. The
fact of the settlement is given here because a member of William Bishop's family
was part of the settlement. | |
| Absalom Bishop, Senior, gréw up on his father's plantation into virorous
and active young manhood. His boyhdod and youth was spent in such activities as
usually fell to the lot of the sons of well-to-do farmers and middle class planters
in those days. This plantation compriged some three thousand acres, more or less,
and had been acquired by Thomas Bishop, Absalom's father thrdugh close application
to business and godd management in the use of means to given ends. The exact loca-
tion of this tract is not certainly known at this late date. It has been absorbud
into other land holdings long ago. The most that is known is that it was far
south of Richmond, on a tributary of the James. River.The great fact remains that
Absalom lived there during his boyhood, youth and young manhood. There is a strong
probability that it was on the lower wateré of the Appomatox. | |
Going back to that day and time, labor was plentiful. The®titled rich"
owning great plantatichs, emploved both white and negro labor to cultivate their
extensive tobacco plantations. Manual labor was regérded'by them as unfit employ-
ment to engage the labor of people of rank. This class of Virginians enszoed nan-
agers of overseers to attend to all the necessary business connected with their
agficultural operations. Sometimes there was a manager-of a lower rank employed
who had come over to restore a lost fortune or broken'péfrimoﬁy by the "work
which his own" order had despised until financial necessity sousht a new avenue.
Thomas Bishop equipped his place with all. the necessary stock required;
horses, ciattle and hogs, farm utensils, implements and so'on. He employed rent-
ers, croppers and hired men as laborers. On this place there were fields of corn
and wheat; also large fields of tobacco. There was a capacious grist mill where
wheat and corn were ground into flour and meal to supply the entire population
on the blantation. Also there was considerable outside patronagce of the mill by

farmers of the countryside.
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In his boyhood and youth, Abzalom uan priven "a bebacen pateh" Lo enlbividle
oh his own account and later a field of corn. lle eould uge the crops as he desired,
Absalom was partial to animals on the place and liked to lend. a helping hand at -
"feed time" during the years of his boyhood and youth. lle was fond of horses :and
dogs and became an expert horseman before he had reached legal age. He was noted
among his associates as a good shot. ' | |

. ﬁFox'hunting was common because of the great numbers of that animal made
destructive of pbultry and of the young of other valuable animals bred on the farms
and plantations. Absalom was often with the fox hunters in the chase. Some times he
joined the hunters who were out for big game prowling in the forests and in the
Jungles along streams such as the panther,'beaf. etc. Deer hunting was common.
Fishing and swimming was also a part of the life of every boy and youth in sensen.

With the eagefness of boyhood, youth and young manhood,}Absalom paortook of
various phases of his environment and with them he absorbed the zpirit of the rea
Virginia. At his majority, his parents gave him a valuable tract of land consist-
ing of woodland and open field. This transaction lifted him at once into a legal
citizen of th?/éolony_--a freeholder, voter and tax payer.

It is enough to say that he entered into the vocation of farming on his own
responsibility with the vigor and energy of the youth that he was. Success crowned
his efforts. He was happy in his choice of the men whom he employed to help in.cul-
tivating his land. It seemed he had” the faculty of discrihination of character. ile
employed men and their families of sober habits and industrious in thelilr pursuits.

In spirit, Absalom himself was a part of what may be termed "the muscle and
brawn democracy" of the new colony; and the men he employed to cultivate his land
were naturally a part and paréel of that division of the colony's population.In
short, the owner of the land and his farm laborers were in sympathy with each other
upon the issuss of the times -- politicélly, morally and socially -— as against the
uhjﬁst privileges incorporated in the laws of the English lonarchy which made clas:
legislation a process of infringments upon the civil rights of the people.Absalom
.proépered and added a valuable tract of land to his holdiﬁgslin addition to ihe
tract of land his parcnts had glvch him, this 1lifted his ccononle rating Inte that
of a hiddie class planter.. o

Then the French-and Indian Was brocke out. Hé registered in fﬁe llome Guard
of his District. The guard was made up largely of young men for.local‘defense. There
is not atatement in the annals of this particular Bishop family that the llome Cauzd
of which he was a member was called out to accompany VWashington upon Gencral Brad-
dock's'unfortunate expedition in 1755. Absalom was just tventy-five years of are
at or near thé close of that year. His Home Guard was employed as scouting patrols

on the nearer frontiers of the colony, to attack parties of Indians sent out by
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the French into the forests' on miszsions of mavare destrustion. Tn these atbackes
some of the guard lost thelr lives; more Indians bit the dusi. Abcalom developed
a rare tralt of quality during these days of quick acticn; he never reemed sur-
prised at any sudden or uhlooked for turn in "affairs" with the Indians. This
quality gave him much control of his muscles and nerves. lle never registered fear
nor fright on anj occasion and the tradition of his immediate descendants mark
Him as ine 1f the Red Man's most dangerous antagonists.

The French and Indian War in America involved all the £nglich coloniss.
England won but it was not until 1763 that a treaty of peace wanz signed by France,
Spain and England in Paris, France. The wars had important effects upon the colon-
ies. During this time the men were trained in warfare, were brought in closer
contact with one another making it easier for them ‘to unite in times of danger
and strenghbened them. The wars put Great Britain heavily in debt. The colonial
aSSeﬁblies had previsously decided the amount of taxes’thaf should be levied to.
support the colonial goVernmenf. For years many in Great Britain had oppoced this
and now the ministers of George III decided to levy the tax on the colonies. They
were arocused and vigerously protested. |

i At the close of the fighting in 1759, Absalom had returned to his home and |

resumed his farming operations. His absence had brought losses. Some of the farm-
ers who had cultivated his land had been engaged in the war, others left for
places in another community, some of the farms were not cultivated. But there
was a number still under cultivation and this enabledvhim to start to rectify
matters and begin to build up the place. . |

In 1760 he was at work repairing and restoring his plantation, empl oyin"
laborers and working out pratical plana to carry forward his agricultural busi-
ness. He had no though!that events were converging towards another way; least of
all with the mother country. At that time all classes were loyal to Great Brit-
ain. In Absalom's case he was not iess loyal than other citizens but there were
memories of his Biuhop forebearo handed down thru the generation and the oppoetion
to unjust and oppre851ve laws.

As a scout patrol he had W1denod his acquéintanpgship with men and mndc
a considerable number of friends. Among these he found a number whose plans had becﬁ
to remove to .the Albemarle county of North Carclina. The War inVirginia had pre-
vented this. Thelr objective was to carry out these plans as soon as possiBle.
The great fertility of that division of the colony and the interior adjacent
and inland from the alluvial coast lands of Albemarle Sound had become gener-
ally known. Immigrants from various paris of the world and from other colonies
had flocked to the region and opened up prosperous settlements. It had become a

leading region in tobacco cultivation. Indian corn, raising cattle, swine and
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sheep were alrco important. Fartles of lmmiprrants had often left Viecinia and set-
tled in this area and Absalom had heard about hisvgrcat-grund uncle who hiyl
accompanied the party making the first scttlement in Worth Carolina. There uere
rossibly other reasons for congidering a ﬁove,'such as lawn upon the working and
industrial classes of Virgihia and problems of changling land titles d ¢ to new
charters and succeeding kings. |

While Absalom was engaged at his work at farming, the tobacco crop all
over the colony failed. Virginia was doing all she could to meet her rightful
expenditures but the wars had drained her in men and money. All debts in this
colony were paid in tobacco by the pound and the price, because of the failures
in the crop, had greatly increased. The assembly ailowed the people to pay all
publlc dues at &he rate of two-pence for a pound of tobaécq. Since church azsess-
ments weie public dues, the clergy objected and brought suit to recover salary.
The king vetoed the law. Other taxes were added including the stamp act in 1765.

Absalom, Sr. disposed of his land at sufficient valauation to enable him
to emigrate to North Carolina and the fall of 1765, his party left Virginia and
made thelr way by successive marches and encampments into N.C. During their en-
campments, the men discussed the taxes and the majority of the men agreed that
they were join with those North Carolinians who would resist the taxes when they
had located their new home. " '

There was a man by thé‘n#me_of Nathan Greene who had been a friend of
Thomas Bishop, Absalom'e father. Abszalom remembered there were youngeters in the
famiiy, the baby being a two-year old girl when the Creene family moved to I'.C.
Nathan Greene had settled in one of Albemarle couﬁties that bordered on the Roan-
oke River. Nhen Nathan Greene learned of the arrival of this party with the son
of his old friend, he sat about to help them secure homes for as many as chose
to remain in the area. Absalom secured a tract of hundredé of acres and supplied a
number of the working men who came with him with homes énd plenty of work by
which to make a living. In a few_years; Absalom?s farming éﬁefatinﬁé expanded in-
to big fields'of-Indian corn and~great stretches cof tébacco and small srains. His
pastures soon were dotted with herds of cattle and he ﬂébt az abundance of uwine.
As for horses, he kept them for all purposes demanded by his location and enviro-
ment. _ | |

Though Absalom w&s-bgsy with his farm, he met the Greene family accasion-~
ally as their home was some.miles away.He soon learﬁea that the Greens family were
of Quaker affiliation and or Quaker origin and that Nathan was utterly «rposed to
the British tax and had a_Eitter prejudice against the tyranny of Kinss. Abnalom
also learned that Martha Rebecca had grown into a bouncing maiden of fiftcen. l'artha
was.oftgn seen on horse back galloping along the roadways of her fakher's planta-
tion with a brother. She had learned the use of fircarms and tradition sayn €hat
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she practiced chooting at a target. That Absalom in Lhe priee of hi: mantieod and
bachelerhood fell in love with Martha Greene is one of the outztandine facts of
his life. Abzalom and liartha, with the consént of her parents, were unlted in mar-
ruage th 1767, when mhe was seventeen years of age.

That same year marked another mile-stone in the approach of the Revclution.
The British Parliament requésted the king to have all perzons in active opposition
toythe'laws, arrested and brought to England to be tried for treasno. Frobably no
one thing incensed the colonies more than this. lien and women who had been luke-
wafm now regarded the. king as little if any better than the Devil. It became known
that the governors of Va. and N.C. had secret agents circulating among a2 class of
the people that were either ignorant or uninforméd of the true csuses of the quarrel
with England.This was probably about the year 1770, ‘none of-the colonies had sy~
gested wlthdrawing from the homeland but there were iittle-private meetings being
held among the patriots in Halifax county and in fact throuzh cut the colonies.

Perhaps the first pitched battle of the Revolution was fought on the Ala-
mance, one of the head streams of the Cape Fear River, on the 16th of lay, 1771.
This was between settlers from the uplands of N.C. who had formed a body called
"Regulators" and.Gév. Tryén militia. The uplanders had been oppressed for many
years by excessive taxes, attorney's fees and lawsuits which caused many to lose
property rightfully acquired. Tryson's troop won this battle but again it led to
.mpre bitterest._A body of men, seventy in number, came to liew Bern in. August 1774.
-They declared that the people of their'colony-pould not pay the taxes laid upon
them by the British Parllament. They named Hooper, llower and Caswell to attend the
meeting in Philadelphia in Sept. 1774. In April, 1775, the men azain went to llew
Bern. They said they intended to look after the welfare of the colony but the new
Governor, Martin was not pleased to see them and told them to go home. Their busi-:
ness completed, they left buf'the'Governor was afraid and boarded a2 British war-
ship in the Cape Fear River. ) | | .

Absalon was now a family man. One or two children had died but in the fall
of 1772, a son was born and named Absalom after his father. It was mentioned earlier
tha£QXESalom; Senior was given tWo names and.that the chronicler did not Inow thal ‘
name. It may be that he at some time had used that name is why the matter was re-
ferred to. f'

/ After the second meeting was held in Mew Bern, the tofies of all =zections
began to appear in the open.The old scout instincts of Absalom werec again neceded to
uﬁearth tory meeting places, check on their movements, 1earn the names of their
neighborhood leaders and report his findings to the Vhigs of Halifax county. A nums
ber of the men who had agreed to adhere to the American causec on their way to I.C.
were living with him and they often rode togehher on night searche:s againast tory

raiders. They used horses from his planiation and his private weiapon-. Ther e
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often in hot pursuit of Tory ridders who would capture eatlle and harien Crom Lhe
farmers, | )

It was on May 20th, 1775 that men {from ﬁecklenbura county met ~t Chardotte
and declared the people of that county free and independont of Creat Pritiin. Zoon
afterward, the same body met and appointed 'officers to rule the county. This news
spread like wild fire and Absalom is reported to have said"Som'thin' had to be done,
Marthy!"

A third convention was held, this one of Iillsboro, in Aurust, 1775. 184 de-
lagates from all parts of N.C. were present. Absalom and Nathan Oreecne cast they.
votes for the patriots. At this convention, a committee was formed to preparc a
form bf gbvernment for the whole.province and a 1argé number of rifleman were en-
listed to be ready at a minute's notice. This action aroused the Tory division of
the surroupding country to new activities. In N.C. there were many Scotch llirhland-
ers loyal to the king. With other Tories they gathered fifteen hundred men at
Cross Creek (Fayetteville) to march to Wilmihgton to enter the King's service. -
Colonels Cgswell and Lillington led a thousand rifleman up the crecli to meet them
and the two groups camped at a bridge:atilloocrée's creek over night. Yhen the Tories
rushéd~to croos the creek very early the next morning they fell in the water as the
floor of the bridge had been removed. Many Tories were killed and more than ceven-
hundred taken prisoners. The British had planned to Jjoin the men but sailed to the
soufh._- ’

In April, 1776, W.C. called another convention, this one at Halifax. Lbsales
mounted his best horse and &ith a number of other whigs galloped to Hzalifax tc
attend the convention. The members sent a message to N.C. delegation in Fhiladelphia
to"Concur with the delegates from the other colonies in declating independence."

Tt had been decided by local authorities in North Carolina that the Taising
of crops for food for man and beast should continue ﬁhenever possible as the call
for enlisted men would drain many from the farms. Besides local militia and other
arms of the service had to be kept for the purpose of lbcal defonse. Absalom, Sr.
with a number of his neighboring farmers entered into the busines= of prodﬁcing |
crops of corn and wheat and in cufing grasses for hay. For the next three years they
produced'good crops and took.care of the familities of'tﬂé enlicted men who hod
entered their serviccs in the American army, some of whonm had farmed on Absalom's
'blaée and others on lands owned by his neighbors.'All surplué_was stored where it
could not be readily found. |

Absalom , Being an expert horseman, scoured his part of the country, some=
times with neighbofs, as a precaution against marauders who mircht seck to capture
farm livestock which were raised on a number of plantations in that part of the
cnuntry;-Absalom, himself, had taken advﬁntage of the resources from the start.

He raised colts, bought and sold horses and brood mares. lie kept nwine and surplied



his place with an abundance of pork. He excelled ln the larme number of cattle he_4q_
kept and beef was one of the standard dishes upon his dlining table and alno for

the men who cultivated the land. VWild fowl infested the swamps ~7 the Posnole and
its tributary streams and fish and- turtle were abundant, from the tide waters all
the waylup to and far beyong the Falls in the uplands. |

But after all said in praise of the fine and fertlile country, it required
long and arduous labor to build up valuable tracts of land for farming purposnes,

As compared with present develoment in agriculture, it was primitive. Ther=z were
many undralned swamp lands for a number of miles along strecams above the alluvial
regions. Infant mortality, 2s had been the case in the colong of Vircinia, took
heavy toll among the many families. Absalom and Martha lost a number of infants.
Sometimes during the year of 1778, their son, Thomas, was born and survi&ed; vig-
orous from birth and nearly six years younger than the first born, Absalom,.T.

He was named after his érandfather, who did not leave Virginia. In 1730, Fartha
presented Absalom another son that survived and he was named Nathan after her
father. The boy lived, grew strong and full of lusty life..

Looking back from this year of 1786, to the call for veolunteers to support
Washington, we find Absalom Bishop, Sr. ‘together with his patriot neighbors support--
ing every moveﬁent of the Whig cause in their part of the caountry, each accordinz to
his means. Absalom contributed several horses to volunteer troops who were unable to
supply their own; numbers of beef cattle to the local comissary; corn, roughage,
hay, cured pork 1n the way or middlings, hams and shulders, and several hundred
pounds of tobacco from his warehouse. These contributions were made along the paes-
ing years as the conditions of the Whig couse required. |

Not 211 the people in Halifax and surrounding counties were in favor of the
American Gsuse. Numbers of them were Tories and supported the British Tory Govern-
ment. On both sides of the river, an unknown number of them had sprung up and they .
spied upon the movemants of the patrioté and committed crimes in the name of and
under the auspices of Britain's military forces in America. Some of ther were bLit-
ter personal enemies against patriots whom they had known prior te the l.ar. However
the cdnduct of the British troops tﬁrough North and South Cavrolina; deatroying pro-
perty and taking food and proseesions for troies as well an-the patriols caused
many of the tories to join the cause of the colonies. |

) After the Battle of Guiford Court House Corﬁwalli; marched llorth throuch
Halifax on his way to Virginia. Absalom, Sr. with the other patriot farmers drove
their live stock inot hidden swamps and removed food stuffs where the British forag--
ing farties could not readily secure it. Food for man and beast was scarce and non-

ey was scarcer. In all that highly productive region South of the Roanoke the former

days of proaperity had been swallowed up into the destructive war. The old men and
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boys too young to serve in the army, banned together in little ;‘roup:. in ambucsh.
Absalom was involved in this and family tradition has it that the ¢ld zcout ~lept
neither night nor day until the British were over the linc into Virsinin,

The War was over but Absalpm Bishop,3r. found hic environmant.on the Roanoke
very dissatisfory. He found it impossible to carry on his farming operationr src-
cessfully. What l=bor he could secure was for the most part not reliable.'numbers
of people were milling around aimlessly and doing odd Jjobs for meals.

01d Nathan Greene died after the surrender of Cornallis and Absalom;¢r.
Joined the little Quaker organization h&ld occasionaliy at the Greens recidence.

In the falld of 1779, Absalom, Sr. with a number of his friends in that
part of N.C. agreed tdmigrate as soon as possible to South Carolina.They were
seeking theJupland section of that state. The party gathered together, some from
over the line in Virginia, some from around Edention and elsewhcre. They werc Oua-
kers, Baptists and various religious beliefs. There a kincman of Absalom, r.,
bearing the name'of Bishop who joined the party.lle was a descendant of "3ig uill
but not of,qumas-Biéhop but might have descend “from the g:wut-gmn@dvuom&e&kho
was part of that early settlement in N.C. | |

In 1782, the party journeyed to 5.C. Now and then a group stopped at in-
viting localities and settled. Absalom, Sr. with his family and 2 number of his
friends settled on Tyger River in Union District, South Carolina. Some of the
party joumneyed further on. This was late in the fall of 1732. Abcalon, Sr. agshin
besan to build anew for the third time. Union District was larsely a mtretc$\of
territory in the foothils of the state included in the term "back écuntry".

Absalom. Sr. took up sveral hundred acres of land,secured laborers to
aid him in clearin forest lands and in cultivating fields of corn and wheat. Land
was cheap because the population was thin and the great need for settlers to de--
velop the unsettled portions of the Districts. That was one of the times that the
01d Scout Fatrol hit'the-nail on the head for he sncecceded wdnderfully in plantin~
a large and self sustaining farm. The first grist mill on Tyver River within the
present limits of Union County was built and owned by Abséiém Jishop, Senicer.

Creat canebrakes bordered the river and its tributaries for wany miles.
Wild geeSe'and wild ducks in‘large flocks came from ééiadr climate: to spend the
winters. Fick in abundance were found in all the waters. The wilk turkey rcamed
the country. The grey squirrei by the thousand commanded the woods where groves of
hickory spread their branches. The opossum and the raccoon laushed at the hunter:
and their dogs on moonlight nights, co numerous were they. From the wooded hill-
.slopes the whirring wings of the hoot oﬁl and the night havwk fanped the air and
swept inot pbultry perches for muxrder and spoils. The fox =au then and harkcﬂAhjn

most cunning and defiant bark. Far and near, the whippoorwill called its demand to
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"whip poor will" insistently with the dramatic accecnts ef o tralne” eloontinnict.
The assoustics of the hils and vales throush the crins-cross current: of nifht a&f
gave nature a wonderful orchestra for the benefit of the sottlers who chred +o re-
main long enough to listen. It was a ctretch of country to grip the heart of the
piocmeer settlers: fertil soll, springs of pure water bursting throush sranite

rocks at the base of the hills, and a climate not surpasscd in equable tenperature.
anywhere. | | | | .

Many settlements had been made in Union District long before Abselem Rishop,
Sr. and his party had come to the Ryger River section. Thess'settlements wern of
real pioneer origin or originally settled prior to the Hevol'tion which had just
closed. In the District settlements were separated by forests and were nore or lesc
distant from each other at at the time Absalom arrived. Bridges were few and rivers
had to be crossed by fording on horsebck or in little batteaus and cances as the
case might require;'Swimming vas common and in case cf nececsity it was not surpris-
ing for a man to plurige into a stream and swim across. |

Absalom, Sr. was in his "natural element”. He seemed like a man from wham
a great burden had been lifted. A new sttitude of mind took hold of him and I'artha,
the mother of his boys. It was a kind of mental rcnaissance or rebound fron the
burdens of the war days into the blessings of‘peace. No one theousht of him an
growing old, least of all his Hartny.

AdJacent to the Tyger Biver settlement, a number of paker 1nd Paptl 1t
families had located. At or near the site of the present Methodist Church, still
known as "Quaker Church", the Quakers built a "meeting House” as a permanent place-
of worship. Absalom, Sr. having espoused the Quaker faith helped to build it. Tt
stood upon a knoll.in a grave of oak and hickery trees and fronted the throusrhfare
now known as the Buncombe Road. This crude Quaker "meeting House" overlqoked'a
little stream in the distance beyond the road by the name of Iaretts Creek.

The Baptists selected a site near the head waters of the zame creek to
build their church and called it Fasett's Creek Church. It .stoed opposite the
same Buncombe Road a few miles sbove the Quaker "meeting house”. Just bLelow this
church building another public road Joined the Buncombé”rbad which had wound its
way from the crossing at a2 ford on Tyger River. Down the river from this fsrﬂ, Some
- few miles as the crow flies was the location of the settlement made by Absalom,sr.
and his friends. . _

Both the Quaker "meeting house" and Fagett's Creek Church wove built in 1784
- 85. After a lapse of some years Quaker leaders built a more ccmmodious "hectinﬁ
house” near the former site. Their members were increasing. |

Absalom Bishop, Sr. was 55 years old at or near the close of the ye:r 17735
and.Harths Greene Bishop had entered her 36th year a few months prior tn that dntn,
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They often present at the mcetings held at the Quaker "l'eeting lounn",

The Quaker organization employed neo preachers and rave any of its mepbor:
the privilege of giving his or her testimony as to the salvation of lod throush
the Father, Son and Holy Spirit. The leaders of the (rroup were oppo-el to the
spread of negro slavery in the "back Country". In fact this opposition pxtpnded
whereever'a Quaker “meeting house" was planted.

Absalom,Sr. went about his varied dutles with the zome quiet, obacrvant
methods of old. Nothing seemed to escape his oversight. His buisneas expanded,
better'buildings were erected, more additions fro convenlence to dwellings vwere
made and new farms were opened up. Horses, callle,'swine and cheep increased. The
old "scout patrol™ had become a successful farmer in his habitat in Union District
which was half hidden by wooded hillslopes in that great flourishing "back country”.

Sometimes between the years of 1788 and 1793 Martha presented her husband
two daughters. The elder of the two was named Martha as a tribute to her sracious
mother apd the younger one by two years more or less was given the name Rebecca be~
cause of family connection with the past.

'~ Through the advancing years the three sons‘grew to youth and youns manhood
and the d;ughfers.developed into happy healthful maidenhood. Absalon, Jr. became his
father's féreman and confidential aid in business matters connected with the farm
and assunulated considerable landed property.in his own name after his majority.

Absaldm Bishop,Sr. hated the‘practice of double dealing prevalent anmons a
certain class of men in those days. His h*red men, croppers renters cr any laborer
in his employ received hls full measure on ""ettlement daj". This is a- part of the
reputation of the man as handed down from his 1mmed1ate descendants. Again, his
devotion to his wife whom he called larthy permeated the atmosphere of his home
and influenced the lives of his three sons énd two daughters long after his de-
parture from earth. Kindly, self poised, unafraid of man or beast, serpent or devil,
this courageous "old scout patrol"™ was no man's servant. C '

The names of the sons and déughters born to Absnlon Piehop, 5r. by his wife
Martha Greene. Bishop together with dates af births, marriares and other vmtorlal in
the later annals of this spec1a1 family of lineal descendantc.-

1. Absalom Junior, oldest son born in llorth Carolina inughc fall of 1772, wan a fare-
mer all his life. He accumulated much landed.estate.'uc married Viss Rebecan |
Mildred Hopkins in the spring of 1799. llis wife waS-é native of Union iistrict and
was some years younger than Absalggb’Jr. A number cf children were_born to thic

union but only four survived. John,born in 1800, the first year of the nineteenth
century. Absalom, Sr., still active and spry in his seventieth year, rejoiced at

the birth of thlo boy, his first grand child, and with larthy went to Abzalon' -

home to bestow his bizcssings upon the child.



2. Thomas, born in N.C. about the year 1785 vas named € or-hi: rwmd fathicr, Thenas
Bishop of Virginia. He followed the carpenters trade and beecame a locnlly nated -23-
bullder of the best residences.in the prorsress of his dav and tirc. ™ married ° s
liary Burms, é native of Union Distrigt about the year 130%. A laree [aunily of Loy
and girls was the'results of this marriage. The first child was a sou named ‘ien-
jamine Thomas, whose ?igg;\Occured in 1807 or thereabout.'Two noted eveuts also
took place: Absolom, QGnior, who had fought a gocd fight, was called this year by

a higher power to lealVk his‘beat and® come up hlgher and rest. The other the hirth
of future Gov. William M. Gist. ) | |

3. Nathan, the youngest son who was born in 1780 in I.C. lie becanc .an expert Jjudre
of horses and bought and sold them és-é business. (By the vear 1816 the Quaker grohp
throughout the slave holding sectionépf the country had been notified by their lead-
ers that Negro slavery could not be uprooted at that time. LKumberc of the ‘praiers of
Union district sold their lands, meeting house, burial grunds and numbers of them
migrated North of the Mason ~-Dixon Line. The Methodist Conference boughi the Quaker
Meeting House opposite the Buncombe Road, which had been later built at the former
site and established a'MethodiSﬁ_Church at the séﬁe spot.) liathen Bishop married a
Quaker girl and migrated with a party of Quaker members to Ohio. (Absalom, Jr. also
prepared'to g0 as did his brother Thomés. But at this time a malignént fever began
to spread among the inhabitants of that section and struck down numters of the
youthful population. The family of Absaclm, Jr. faid suéh heazvy till that numberss
ot his children died. All thought of followiﬁﬁ the rest of the Ouakers to Chio was
given up. The family of Thomas, not yet as numerous as Absalom's esraped the fever.
He went to ‘his brother and secured him that he;buld not leave him and stay he did
and raised a large family of boys and girls in Union District.)

4. Fartha was born in Union District, S.C. in the wicinity of C1d Quaker leeting
House; the exact date of her birkh is not known to this chronicler. I'artha Zishep.
married Jesse_Gray'of Laurens District. A nYmerous family of boys and girle was
born to them. One of their sons was named Walter. One daughter married I'r. Pryes,
another married Mr.-Péterson,'one daughter named Carolina marriced Jonax= Owink of
Union District and another named Ehily married hir. Little. Jesse Gray and vife '
Martha became well to-do.and with their means promoted.aﬁd.contributeﬂ to the
betterment of church and progressive citizenship in their district. Tn the cowrne

of time Jesse Gray became one of the most promlncnt laymen of the M.E. Church, South
in the up country. . ,

5. Rebecca, born in the vicinity of 0ld Quaker leeting House in Union District,S.C

- again the exact date is not known to writer was the younrer of Abzalom and Iartha's
daughters. She married lNr. Zedekiah Barnett. He was familiarly known among the ro-
latives as -"Zed" Barmett. One of the most numerous families in Union Uistrict, gfcg



2l

the results of this marriapge. Among the sons born to Lhem vere Thowmsn:, Abeyl, Y Leo,
ferry, Marlon, etc. One of the daughters was named Hiranda. "'ed Darnclt cwned a
homestead and a valuable tract of farming land attached there to lnented betueon
Union Court House and Tygér River.- '

The names of Absalom Bishop. Jr.'s sons and daughters with additional facts:

1. thn was 6;—\\in 1800 and married Miss Vashti Prince in 1823 and accumulated a
handsome estate.

2. Patsey (real name Martha) married Baird (&Bird") Jackson, removed to middle “‘eo-
rgia. The most of thelr children were bred and born in the "Cracker State.™

3.Sarah, born about 1820, married William ¥Wilbanks a tﬁ%ough going farmer. They re-
moved to Mississipps in 18%4 or 1855 The greatef‘number of their children were borm
in the neighborhood of the Quaker church prior to their removal to FHississipps.

Among them were a son, Absalom, a dauphter named Angelene, gnotbﬁr aauchter ndmed
Caroline.-Those_three married in MHississipps. The VWilbanks cotton market wa: liem-
phis, Temn. ‘ '

4.Elmore T. Bishaop youngest child of Absalom, Jr. and Rebecca Bishop was born Aug.
1st, 1822 and married liss Mary Caroline Davis 1847. She was the daughter of lreter
bavis of’Goéhen Hilli, S.C. A~number{of'children were born to this marri=;e.

1. A daughter, named Allie, born July 3rd 1848. Allie is the chronicler of this
Bishop ancestral line. She married James F. Duffie, [.D. of Chester County, .J.C.
She had no children and was a widow at the time of writinz, 1926. |

2.A daughter named Rebecca Mildred born in the early *50's and married Farior G.
Lee, son oflenathan Lee by his wife Elizabeth Sparks Lee. Sons and Daughters:
1.Hiran Fitzbugh, married Miss Laura Dillard |

2. Bugenie, mar*1ed Rev. D.A. Swindler of the Baptist Church, now a widow penides at
Laudrum, S.C. | '

3. Roland Limwood, married Miss Ethel Hillis, daughter of Frof. R.I.Yillis of '.:13-11::-"
ton, S.C. Roland Linwood Lee is a business man of Landrum, L.f. and hiz mother liv-
ing there is a widow. _

ﬁu-Arthur'Judsonh married Miss Dotdthy'whitman, Daughter of Rev. Uhitwan of hhc'
M.E. church who now resides with his family near kacon ,Ca. |

5 Bthel Onivia, married Carroll %. Downey, F.D. of 5.0, removed to Tallapoc:a, la.
She was the mother of a large familonf'children and very recently departed this life.
3. Sarah Virginia, born to Elmore T. Bishop by his wife Fary Caroline in 1853 cr 185k,
She married Ervin D. Allison of Brevard, N.C. and removed .to Spartanburg. The; bought
and established a home near New Prospect of that county. Of the children born to

them three survived, namely: |

(1) Thomas married a Greenville county girl and resides ﬁith hic family at Lauvdrum,

S.C.
(2) Elisha Elmore and (3) Alligon, a farmer, both unmarried.
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(3) Allie Eveline, marricd Willlam Q. Geollb of Hlgefield eounly, 5.1, voesiden

at Spartanburg,where he'is-a successful business man.

L. Benjamine Thomas, born Marck 1st, ‘1857. He married [iss “rwa Dailey, davehior

of Thomas Bailey and wife Amanda Gibbs Balley. Seven sons and three daughturs were -
born to this marriage.

(1) Thomas Elomore, married Miss Lottie Benni=on of 3looue,Texas.

(2) Edwin, died in promising young manhood.

(3) "¥illy married a lady of Falestine, Texas

(4) -Clarence, married a lady of Slocum, Texas

(5) Bthele, married Leon Vickery of RFD Slocum, Texas. All these families live in Tex.
(6 )havid L. married Miss Minnie Blackwell of Spartanburg county and resides with his
family in Spartanburg where he is engaged in business. |
(7)Dugfie, residence unknown | -

(8) Irene, married W. Creff Alverson, near Campebelle, N.C. 3he hzd five children.
(9) John Bailey, youngest, is unmarried and engaged ét,work in vetroit, I'ich.

Y Elizabeth Johnston, {Bessie) youngest child of Elmore Bishop was boim Aurust Sth
1862, married her cousin William Walter Bishop. There werc eight sons and five
daughters born to this marriage. |
(1) ¥ill, unmarried
(2) Victor married
(3) Raymond
(4) Conn
(5) Azthur
(6) Russell
(7) Alfred
(8) Luther, married |
(9) Lula married Laurens llartin a successful artist and resides at Asheville, II.C.
(10) Coline, married Iir. &lverson, a farmer | |
(11) Lillianm a graduate nurse of Grady Hospital at Atlant, {a.

(12) Gladys, School teacher _

(13) Marie, ‘just out of high school

The entire thirteen are stiil iivigy; and each doing his or her "bit". Their
mother departed this life a few years ago. Llomore DBishop, &ather and grand-
father of the above named joined the 18th Regt. 3.C.V. in 1€63, was killed at the
Battle of the Crater, P%ﬁersbugg, Va. July 30th, 1864. ”

Names of the children of John Bishop and his wife Vashtie Frinece 3ichop:

1., Elizabeth, never married

2. Lyles Gordon, married his cousin liiss Hargaret Rarnett. They had eight sonc{and
a dahghter)
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(1) William Yalter, married cousin, Bessie ish@p, siven in sluove® @ Comily nhove,
(2) Clarence, married Miss oalloy Bishop and was a farwer. They bad 4o —sems and
two daughters: Maggie married C.A. Grainger:; Robcrt Clarcnce, unierried; Davy arvied:
John Faucett, Bennie married Lva Wells.

(3) Jjohn, married the widow of John Greer and had a son, llermon and daurhter, Louise.
(4) Charles, married Miss Mattle Greer, sister of Sallie Greer. They had tuwo sons
Charles, Jr. and Joe; two daughters Vera and Sally

(53 Callis, Married Salley Rogers =

(6) Lawrence married a Miss Lula Sparks,.daughter of Barham Sparks
(7) Eugene went to Birmingham, Ala. and then to&-Texas

(8) tonte went to Birmingham, Ala. and then to Texa

Lyles Gordon Bishop served in the 18th Regt. 5.C.V.from 1861 to 1865.

- 3. John Jr. was killed at the Battle of The Wildermess, Fay 31th 1862 was Volunteer
5 Reg®t S.C.V. '

L. Nancy Penalope, married William Bobo of Cross Keys, 5.C. a succeszsful farmer.:
-Among the ‘children ‘born to them; first a son named Lyles who married Iliis ---Pﬂna
Edson; now owner of the WH. Bobo homcstead- second Cornelia who married Aoalylu,
Estes and they had four children:¥ill, Fannle,,Arthur and ihel all of whom nmarried.
Sotnelia later married a seéond time 'to Dan Mangus, a progressive businens man of
Enoree, 8.C. and they are two childre, Maggie(lirs Blackwell of Greenwood, 5.C. and
Dan, Jr. Nancy®s third child was Addie who married Thomas Cooper of LEnoree, $.C.
Amoﬁg Lthe sond born to them are Clarence, Joe Franklin, L. Fred, and Idrgar. All
are married. Fourth, Monroe married Miss Sallie Clifton, daughter of Robert Clifton
who served in a reg't of S.C.V. Fifth, Minter ailllam who attended the schorls of
the neighbor and developed executive ability, entered mercanti&e businen~ at Unien,
his native county seat and also egtabli,hed a modern Undertakinsg bucinen:s thern. e
nmarried Miss Anna Farar of Cross Anchor, .C. and removed to Spartanbure, S.C. Three
daughters and a son were born to them:Luc;lle, Helen Finter [rancinie (all “grads"
of Converse«College) anéyinter William, Jr who finished at Wofford. I....Bobo is
prominent in Spartanburg‘through business connections and also as one vf the leaders
in his teritory of Woodmen of The World.Sisth,Nancy known as lamfie married ——---—-
- sand they had a large family and were éngaged in farming and industry.

Names 6f the sons and daughters born to Thomas Bishop by his wife.rary 2urine Bic-
hép with additional pointers, etc.
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1.Benjamin Thomas born ahout 1807, married‘ﬂiss peanna, fansnie by uhcs wost born

to him James Thomas, Amanda, Clough, Clinton ¥V, Rufus and Leonna. Jare: Thonss
married Miss Sallie lMciiraw of Newberry County; Clough married'furie ilburm nesr
Cross Keys: Amanda married James liéeredith of =elena, 5.C.; Clinton !. mrrricd
Christian Meredith,sister of Amanda's husband; Rufus married Miss Sallie Robinson
of Léurens. Leanna married Willlam Johnson of Quaker Church neirhborhood. .~anna
BassieBishop died when leanaa was a baby and Benjamine Thomas married arain, to
Miss Margaret Cliften; they had three sons, Frank, Leo and letz.

2. Sam married a Miss Villiams and removed to Alabama and one of his daughters
married a Mr. Wheeler and moved to Southern Ill. |
jJeannette, a school teacher went to Albbama.

4. Jesse.married a Miss Williams by whom he had two daughters and a son. The son,
a young private in a Co. of S.C.V.S. was killed in the was. Fedodz married ilen
Rockwell and Martha married "Dy" Whitlock. Jesse lost his first wife anéd married
Miss Elizabeth Campbell whose parents were Presbyterians from Scotland. They had
five children.Thomas, had one children named Will. Margaret married her cousin
Jesse Swink, son of Jonah Swink. John went %o Florida, married and with his family
redises in that states. Lena Married a Mr. Witlack and is now a widow. Jesae's
second wife died and he married her sister, Miss Caroline Campbell. They had a
daughter named Kate who married a Methodist minister. | .

5. Martin married Miss Blizabeth Gentry. Elliot their firszt daushter rarried o Tr.
Smith of Gaffney, S.C.They had two sons. Julia married a lir. Jenkins. Robert mer-
ried a young lady 6f’the vicinity of Gaffney.

Martha: Bishop Gray's daughter Carolina and husband Jonas Swink had several children.
Jesse harried Margaret, daughter of Jesse Bishop and they had a number of sons and
one daughter, Mary Kate. She married Rev. Wilkins. The sons are engaged in various
lines of work in different parts of the Pledmond area. Emma married her cousin
Walter Gray and had several children, among them Walter and Jjonas I. Lnama was a
devoted member of the M.E.Church and since her death, the smma Gray lemorial Church
“has been dedicated. Jonas, Jr. married Miss Theresa tichopaul of Union, G.C. and
csettled at Woodruff, S.C. He became a succezslful Busin§§§~man and oynmcr of a

large plantation.A number of children were btorn to this marrigrse. Lulu morried af
r. Jones of Laurens, S.C. | |

Names of a few of the sons of "Zed" Barnett and Rebecca Bishop Jarneti are: Thonas,
who married liss Elise Gray, distant relative of Jesse Gray.and alsb a lineal
descendant of the Burdette faﬁily. This Thormas Parnett was the father of TainTaret
Barnett Bishop, wife of Lyles Gordon. The family given earlily inlrepnrt. ~ilen

married Miss Polly Sparks. The descendants of "Zed" and Rebecca arc so miny that



~
fo

this chronicler hereby passes in her offical commission ac histerion « 0 thic
special ancestral line.

" Hote that the basis chronicle for every bonitiecd deacendant of Aluuilon
Bishop, Sr. by his wife Martha Green Bishop is herein recoxrded. to the best of her m
memory as handed down by the'immediate descendants of bhe "O0ld,l~uut latrol"®
Absalom Bishop, SR. Each and every person, of what cver nare Qho is a bonified

descendant in a son. or daughter of the American Revolution.

Sizned --Allie Bishop Duffie



